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Fayemi v. Hambrecht & Quist, Inc., 174 F.R.D. 319, 326 (S.D.N.Y. 1997) (the court may utilize
its inherent authority to preclude use of wrongfully obtained information even where the
documents are otherwise subject to disclosure during the normal course of discovery). Nor does
the wrongfulness of the conduct depend on whether the documents are proprietary, confidential,
or privileged, although the documents at issue are, in fact, confidential and proprietary. (Fujihara
Decl. 49 12, 18, 38). Glynn, 2010 WL 3294347, at *5 (“The parties dispute whether the
information listed above is proprietary, confidential, or protected by the attorney-client or work
product privileges. I need not resolve these issues because, regardless of their merits, I believe it
was inappropriate for [plaintiff and his counsel] to acquire these internal [opposing party]

documents outside the normal discovery channels.”).

3. WRL Caused Fujihara to Breach his Confidentiality Obligations to
UEC

In procuring UEC’s confidential and proprictary documents and information outside the
course of discovery, WRL tortiously interfered with Fujihara’s contractual confidentiality
obligations to UEC.'® Fujihara’s Sworn Oath and the UEC Employment Rules prohibited
Fujihara from disclosing the information and documents he provided WRL. (Fujihara Decl., Ex.

A (Sworn Oath); Ex. B (UEC Employment Rules).) Indeed, Fujihara was not even authorized to

10 To establish tortious interference with contractual relations, a plaintiff must show (1) a

valid and existing contract; (2) the defendant’s knowledge of the contract; (3) intentional acts
intended or designed to disrupt the contractual relationship; (4) actual disruption of the contract,
and (5) resulting damages. J.J. Indus., LLC v. Bennett, 119 Nev. 269, 274, 71 P.3d 1264, 1267
(2003). The confidentiality provisions in Fujihara’s Signed Oath and UEC’s Employment Rules
constitute valid contractual obligations which WRL should reasonably have inferred and
understood would exist because Fujihara is a current UEC employee. Id. (“the plaintiff must
demonstrate that the defendant knew of the existing contract, or at the very least, establish facts
from which the existence of the contract can reasonably be inferred.”) Fujihara’s confidentiality
obligations can also reasonably be inferred from his notice to WRL that the documents WRL
requested were outside of the scope of his authority to obtain. WRL nevertheless undertook
intentional acts intended and designed to disrupt Fujihara’s confidentiality obligations by
encouraging Fujihara to disclose UEC’s confidential documents, including by apparently paying
for his travel expenses, facilitating his movements, and arranging for his interviews. As a result,
Fujihara breached his confidentiality obligations by disclosing confidential and proprietary UEC
information and documents to DOJ and WRL, including documents that he was not authorized to
access, thereby resulting in damages to UEC.
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access, much less share outside UEC, some of the documents he obtained and disclosed to WRL.
(Fujihara Decl. § 33.) The violation of Fujihara’s confidentiality obligations to UEC, and WRL’s
tortious actions in inducing the breach, reinforce the wrongfulness of WRL’s conduct and the

necessity of imposing sanctions.

B. The Court Should Permit Expedited Discovery to Determine the Full Extent
of WRL’s Wrongful Conduct.

The full extent of WRL’s wrongful conduct is unknown at this point. To rectify the
invasions of their rights as soon as possible, UEC and Aruze USA seek the issuance of a Letter
Rogatory to Japan and the following discovery on an expedited basis. UEC and Aruze USA

reserve all rights to seek additional discovery within the expedited schedule to be set by the Court.

1. Application for Issuance of a Letter Rogatory to Japan

Pursuant to Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 28(b), UEC and Aruze USA hereby apply for
the i1ssuance of a Letter Rogatory to the Appropriate Judicial Authority in Japan in order to
compel the deposition in Japan of Kosaka, who has evidence critical to determining the extent of
WRL’s improper conduct. Because Kosaka is a Japanese national who resides in Japan, he is
beyond the subpoena power of this Court.

Nevada law permits depositions to be taken in foreign countries pursuant to a letter
rogatory. NRCP 28(b). Moreover, it is well settled that the Court has inherent authority to issue a
letter rogatory to a foreign tribunal. See United States v. Staples, 256 F.2d 290, 292 (9th Cir.
1958). Furthermore, the U.S. Department of State has the authority to “receive a letter rogatory
issued . . . by a tribunal in the United States™ and transfer it to the appropriate foreign tribunal. 28
U.S.C. § 1781(a).

Nevada law requires that a letter rogatory “shall be issued on application and notice and
on terms that are just and appropriate.” NRCP 28(b). Courts interpreting “just and appropriate”
standards similar to the one in Nevada have found that the terms of a letier rogatory are “just and
appropriate” when the discovery sought by the letter rogatory is “reasonably calculated to lead to

the discovery of admissible evidence.” DBMS Consultants Ltd. v. Computer Associates Int’l.,
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Inc., 131 F.R.D. 367, 369 (D. Mass. 1990). Because Nevada rules permit discovery of any matter
that “is relevant to the subject matter involved in the pending action,” it 1s incumbent upon the
party opposing an application for a letter rogatory to demonstrate that the discovery request
exceeds the state’s liberal discovery rules. NRCP 26(b); see Brake Parts, Inc. v. Lewis, 2009 WL
1939039, at *3 (E.D. Ky. July 6, 2009); see also Evanston Ins. Co. v. OEA, Inc., 2006 WL
1652315 at *2 (E.D. Cal. June 13, 2006) (“[T]his court will apply the rule that letters of rogatory
shall issue unless good cause 1s shown otherwise™).

UEC’s and Aruze USA’s Letter Rogatory to Japan for Kosaka’s deposition easily clears
the relevance requirements of the Nevada rules. Kosaka had a prominent role in WRL’s efforts to
contact UEC employees and obtain UEC’s confidential and proprietary information outside of the
discovery process. Evidence from Kosaka is crucial to determine the full extent of WRL’s
improper conduct, including the volume and identity of specific documents obtained by WRL,
payments by WRL for obtaining information, and identification of other UEC employees whom
WRL may have contacted (directly or through Kosaka). See Evanston, 2006 WL 1652315 at *2
(granting motion for issuance of letters rogatory where declarant’s deposition was relevant and
necessary to prosecution of the action). Of course, UEC and Aruze USA will comply with any
requirement to reimburse this Court for any expenses incurred in connection with the execution of
this Letter Rogatory.

For the foregoing reasons, UEC and Aruze USA respectfully submit that the Court should
grant their application and issue the proposed Letter Rogatory (attached hereto as Exhibit 4).
UEC and Aruze USA also request the Court to return the Letter Rogatory to UEC’s and Aruze
USA’s counsel for delivery to the proper authorities at the U.S. Department of State, who will

ensure that the Letter Rogatory is transferred to the Appropriate Judicial Authority in Japan.

2. Expedited Responses to Interrogatories and Requests for Production of
Documents and Deposition of James Stern

UEC and Aruze USA also respectfully request that this Court order that WRL respond by
Wednesday, May 27, 2015 to UEC’s and Aruze USA’s Fourth Set of Requests for Production of

Documents (“RFPs”) (Exhibit 5) and Interrogatories (Exhibit 6), served concurrently with this
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Motion on April 24, 2015. UEC and Aruze USA request that this Court order that WRL produce
all non-privileged responsive documents in response to the RFPs by Wednesday May 27, 2015
and subsequently produce the privilege log associated therewith by Tuesday, June 2, 2015. a
These RFPs and Interrogatories are limited in scope and serve to inquire into the extent of WRL’s
improprieties, in particular its interactions with UEC’s and Aruze USA’s employees including but
not limited to Fujihara; the nature of WRL’s working relationship with Kosaka; and the
knowledge of the improper conduct by WRL personnel and its legal team. > See Shell Oil, 143
F.R.D. 105 (under the court’s inherent authority, ordering offending party to identify and produce
the documents it received from opposing party’s employee). UEC and Aruze USA further
respectfully request that this Court order the deposition of WRL Senior Vice President of
Corporate Security James Stern take place on June 10, 2015, in accordance with the deposition
notice served concurrently with this Motion (Exhibit 7). UEC and Aruze USA similarly request
that the Court order the 30(b)(6) deposition of WRL’s designee take place on June 18, 2015 in
accordance with, and on the topics identified in, the Notice of 30(b)(6) Deposition to WRL,
served concurrently with this Motion (Exhibit 8).'"* The depositions are scheduled after WRL’s
production of documents in order to permit the documents’ use in the examinations. Because the
documents may reveal further information not yet known to UEC and Aruze USA, UEC and

Aruze USA respectfully request that they be permitted to finalize the 30(b)(6) deposition topics

! UEC and Aruze USA request that disputes, if any, regarding UEC’s and Aruze USA’s
specific requests and proposed response times be resolved at oral argument at the initial hearing
on this Motion.

12 Because these Interrogatories were necessitated by WRL’s wrongful conduct, we

respectfully request the Court should order that they not count towards the 40 interrogatories
permitted under NRCP 33.

= Because this deposition is necessitated by WRL’s wrongful conduct, the Court should
order that UEC and Aruze USA are granted leave pursuant to NRCP 30(a)(2) to take a deposition
of James Stern in the future on this action’s claims and defenses.

14 Because this deposition is necessitated by WRL’s wrongful conduct, the Court should
order that UEC and Aruze USA are granted leave pursuant to NRCP 30(a)(2) to take a future
30(b)(6) deposition of a WRL on this action’s claims and defenses and a future deposition of
WRL’s designee in this instance on this action’s claims and defenses.

18

SA0184



Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

on or by Thursday, June 11, 2015. In order to narrow the issues before this Court at the hearing
on further sanctions, UEC and Aruze USA anticipate serving Requests for Admission to WRL on
or by Thursday, June 11, 2015. Accordingly, UEC and Aruze USA respectfully request that this
Court order that WRL respond to UEC’s and Aruze USA’s Requests for Admission by Monday,
June 22, 2015.

UEC and Aruze USA would be prejudiced if they cannot promptly depose Stern and
WRL’s 30(b)(6) designee and receive answers to interrogatories and responses to the document
requests. WRL has deliberately concealed its wrongful conduct for over two years; WRL has had
the benefit of UEC’s improperly obtained confidential and proprictary information for the
duration of that period; and WRL has failed to disclose that Stern had discoverable information.
Discovery is necessary to determine the extent of WRL’s improper conduct, including the volume
and identity of specific documents obtained by WRL, payments by WRL for obtaining
information, identification of all WRL personnel with knowledge and responsibility, and
identification of other current or former UEC employees whom WRL may have contacted. The
depositions of Stern and WRL, answers to interrogatories and production of documents are also
necessary to determine whether Stern communicated with other employees or agents of WRL
about his communications with, and receipt of UEC’s confidential and proprietary documents
from, current or former UEC employees. Any further delay deepens the prejudice to UEC’s and
Aruze USA’s right to a fair proceeding.

C. The Court Should Impose Sanctions Against WRL for Its Willful Misconduct

WRL’s conduct is sanctionable. “Under its inherent powers, a district court may sanction

a party for wrongfully obtaining the property or confidential information of an opposing party.”

Glynn, 2010 WL 3294347, at *3.1°

= Courts have imposed sanctions even when the full extent of the improper conduct is

unclear. See e.g. Shell Oil, 143 F.R.D. at 108 (“The facts regarding the contact are not entirely
known.”); see also Jackson, 211 F.R.D. at 431 (noting that “the parties have bickered for months
over the exact manner in which [plaintiff] obtained” the confidential information).
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1. Sanctions Warranted Now

a) Return of and Prohibition on the Use of UEC’s Illegally
Procured Documents

The Court should order the return of UEC’s documents that were obtained from Fujihara
and prohibit WRL’s use of those documents in this litigation. See Pure Power Boot Camp, Inc. v.
Warrior Fitness Boot Camp, 587 F. Supp. 2d 548, 570 (S.D.N.Y. 2008) (precluding illegally
obtained e-mails from being used as evidence); Fayemi, 174 F.R.D. at 326 (use of wrongfully
obtained information precluded where plaintiff gained access to private areas of defendant’s

business without permission or authority and copied confidential materials).'®

b) Prohibition on Further Ex Parte Contact by WRL with UEC’s
and Aruze USA’s Current and Former Employees

The Court should put an end to WRL’s improper conduct by precluding it from contacting
UEC’s and Aruze USA’s current and former employees on an ex parte basis. This sanction is
necessary to preserve the integrity of the judicial proceeding where, as here, WRL obtained
documents from its adversary’s employee, using a former employee as a conduit, regardless of
whether the employees contacted are considered a “party” under the “no-contact” rule. Skell Oil,
143 F.R.D. at 109 (under the court’s inherent authority, barring further ex-parte contact with
opposing party’s employees where party previously contacted opposing party’s employees and
obtained opposing party’s documents); Giardina, 2001 WL 1628597 at *4 (exercising court’s

inherent authority to prohibit all ex parte contact between plaintiff and employees of defendant).

16 Lynn v. Gateway Unified Sch. Dist., No. 2:10-CV-00981-JAM , 2011 WL 6260362, at *6-
7 (E.D. Cal. Dec. 15, 2011) (employee’s theft of emails immediately following termination of
employment and disclosure to his attorney warranted sanctions prohibiting the introduction of
evidence about the contents of the emails); Shell Oil Refinery, 143 F.R.D. at 108 (exercising the
court’s inherent authority to prohibit a party’s use of documents received from opposing party’s
employee); Giardina, 2001 WL 1628597 at *4 (exercising court’s inherent authority to prohibit
use of privileged letter obtained by plaintiff through ex parte contact with unknown employee of
defendant); Lahr v. Fulbright & Jaworski, L.L.P., No. 3-94-CV-0981-D, 1995 WL 17816334
(N.D. Tex. Oct. 25, 1995) (appropriation and delivery of defendant’s documents by defendant’s
employce to plaintiff was improper, and ordered return of the documents and prohibited use in the
litigation), aff’d Lahr v. Fulbright & Jaworski, L.L.P., No. 3:94-CV-0981-D, 1996 WL 34393321
(N.D. Tex. July 10, 1996).
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2. Additional Sanctions This Court Should Order Following Expedited
Discovery

a) Monetary Sanctions

In order to deter WRL from similar misconduct in the future, the Court should impose
monetary sanctions, including reimbursement by WRL of UEC’s and Aruze USA’s attorneys’
fees incurred in bringing this motion and in conducting discovery necessitated in pursuing this
motion. See Chamberlain Grp., Inc. v. Lear Corp., 270 F.R.D. 392, 398 (N.D. Ill. 2010)
(plaintiff’s failure to disclose receipt of privileged and confidential documents from defendant’s
former employee was a breach of its ethical duty and warranted monetary sanctions); Glynn, 2010
WL 3294347 (monetary sanctions to punish and deter plaintiff for acquiring internal company
documents from defendant’s employee); Ashman v. Solectron Corp., 2008 WL 5071101 (N.D.
Cal. Dec. 1, 2008) (costs and attorney fees for defendant’s motion to preclude the use of the
unlawfully obtained documents where plaintiff accessed defendant’s computer system without
authorization after termination of his employment and retrieved confidential documents for use in
litigation).

b) Dismissal of WRL’s Claims

The Court should dismiss WRL’s claims relating to the illegally procured documents as a
sanction for its wrongful conduct. In determining whether to dismiss any of WRL’s claims, the
Court may consider (1) the degree of willfulness of the offending party; (2) the extent to which
the victimized party would be prejudiced by a lesser sanction; (3) the severity of the sanction of
dismissal relative to the severity of the discovery abuse; (4) whether any cvidence has been
irreparably lost; (5) the feasibility and fairness of alternative, lesser sanctions; (6) the policy
favoring adjudication on the merits; (7) whether sanctions unfairly operate to penalize a party for
the misconduct of counsel; and (8) the need to deter both the parties and future litigants from
future abuses. Young, 106 Nev.at 93, 787 P.2d at 780.

WRL’s conduct was willful. WRL pursued UEC’s most senior accounting and finance
manager and pressured him to disclose UEC’s confidential and proprietary information and
documents. This is not a case where WRL inadvertently stumbled upon UEC’s documents,

gaining access to confidential information by mistake. WRL’s willfulness is reflected by its
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secrecy. WRL’s plan seems to have been to bury its impropriety by failing to make required
NRCP 16.1(a) disclosures,’ omitting Stern, Kosaka, and Fujihara from its list of individuals
likely to have discoverable information, and by failing in the last two years to produce documents
concerning its communications with Fujihara, much less the documents WRL obtained from

5 (See Exhibit 9; see also Declaration of Robert J. Cassity, Esq. (“Cassity Decl.”)

Fujihara.'
(attached hereto as Exhibit 1) 9 8.) Due to the willfulness and severity of WRL’s misconduct
deliberately executed over the course of multiple ex parte meetings on two continents over many
months, as well as WRL’s concealment of its misconduct, dismissal is appropriate. Jackson, 211
F.R.D. at 430-33 (dismissing action after finding that plaintiff intentionally stole defendant’s
proprietary secrets, attorney-client work product, and confidential information both before and
after he left his employment with defendant).

UEC and Aruze USA would be prejudiced in defending this lawsuit by the application of
lesser sanctions because WRL has gained a tactical advantage by utilizing improperly obtained
UEC confidential and proprictary information, as well as contacting UEC’s most senior Finance
and Accounting Manager, in formulating WRL’s discovery and litigation strategy. Assessment of
monetary sanctions alone would convey a “message to litigants that money could cure one’s
improper acts.” Perna, 916 F. Supp. at 400. Further, WRL, by apparently paying for Fujihara’s

participation, has already demonstrated that money is less important to it than improperly

obtaining an edge over UEC and Aruze USA. Even if WRL were to return the documents,

v The Wynn Parties’ Seventh Supplemental Disclosures Pursuant to NRCP 16.1 is attached

as Exhibit 9 to this Motion with the omission of the production log, attached as Exhibit A to the
Disclosures.

'8 UEC and Aruze USA requested on January 2, 2013 that WRL produce “[a]ll documents
concerning communications by Wpynn Resorts with Defendants (including Defendants’
representatives) concerning any investigation that Wynn Resorts conducted or commissioned
concerning Defendants or their businesses in the Philippines.” RFP No. 35. While WRL agreed
to produce responsive documents to this request, WRL’s NRCP 16.1 Disclosures omit James
Stern, Toshihiko Kosaka, and Yoshitaka Fujihara from their list of individuals likely to have
discoverable information and WRL’s production of documents, to date, does not include
documents concerning its communications with Yoshitaka Fujihara or documents WRL obtained

from Fujihara. (Cassity Decl.  8.).
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knowledge of UEC’s proprietary information cannot be erased. See id. (once plaintiff reviewed
the documents his knowledge of the proprietary information could not be erased; defendant had
suffered prejudice which could only be cured by dismissal); see also Lipin v. Bender, 84 N.Y.2d
562 (N.Y. App. Div. 1993) (dismissing action where plaintiff obtained and reviewed internal
memoranda prepared by opposing counsel because the wrongdoing and knowledge were the
party’s own “so that neither suppression of the document nor suppression of the information was
a realistic alternative” to dismissal), aff’d 193 A.D. 2d 424 (N.Y. App. Div. 1993).

Moreover, dismissal is necessary to deter future abuses. No other sanction will deter
WRL and future litigants from engaging in similar behavior as well as dismissal. Perna, 916
F. Supp. at 401. (“[D]ismissal is the only form of discipline that will insure the orderly
administration of justice and the integrity of the courts.”).
V. CONCLUSION

In sum, UEC and Aruze USA request that this Court order (i) expedited discovery to be
completed by June 22, with disputes if any regarding UEC’s and Aruze USA’s specific requests
and proposed response times to be resolved at the initial oral argument on this Motion; (i1) initial
sanctions against WRL, specifically the return of, and prohibition on the use of, illegally procured
documents, and a prohibition on further ex parte contact with Aruze Party employees; and (iii)
oral argument after expedited discovery on UEC’s and Aruze USA’s requests for further

sanctions, using the following overall schedule:
Date Event

To be determined (but | Oral argument on requests for
no earlier than May 4)

e cexpedited discovery (including the resolution of any disputes
over the particulars of discovery being served on WRL
concurrently with this Motion);

e issuance of a letter rogatory; and

e initial sanctions. (including return of UEC’s documents
wrongfully misappropriated by WRL, precluding the use of
such documents in this proceeding and prohibiting further ex
parte contact between WRL and current and former UEC and
Aruze USA employees)
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Wed., May 27

Service by Wynn Resorts, Limited’s (“WRL”) of

o responses to UEC’s and Aruze USA’s First Set of
Interrogatories (served April 24); and

e non-privileged documents responsive to UEC’s and Aruze
USA’s 4th Request for Production of Documents (served
April 24)

Tues., June 2

Service of WRL’s privilege log in response to UEC’s and Aruze
USA’s 4th Request for Production of Documents

Wed., June 10

Deposition of James Stern

Thurs., June 11

Deadline

e for service of any requests for admission (responses due by
close of expedited discovery); and

e to finalize topics for Deposition of 30(b)(6) designee(s).

Thurs., June 18

Deposition of 30(b)(6) designee(s)

Mon., June 22 Completion of expedited discovery
Mon., June 29 Service of WRL’s opposition to the request for further sanctions
Mon., July 6 Service of UEC’s and Aruze USA’s reply papers

To be determined
(UEC and Aruze USA
request Fri., Jul. 10)

Oral argument on Motion’s request for further sanctions

DATED this 24th day of April, 2015.
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1 Defendants and Counterclaimants Aruze USA, Inc. (“Aruze USA™) and Universal
2 || Entertainment Corp. (“UEC”), by and through their counsel of record, hereby move the Court for
3 || expedited discovery, issuance of a letter rogatory, initial sanctions' and, following completion of
4 || expedited discovery, for further sanctions against Wynn Resorts, Limited (“WRL”).
5 This Motion is based upon the following Memorandum of Points and Authoritics, the
6 || Declaration of Yoshitaka Fujihara, the Declaration of Robert J. Cassity, Esq., the papers and
7 || pleadings on file in this action, and any oral argument this Court may allow.
8 DATED this 24th day of April, 2015.
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day of

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the foregoing UNIVERSAL ENTERTAINMENT
CORP.’S AND ARUZE USA INC.’S MOTION FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY AND

SANCTIONS will come on for hearing before Department XI of the above-entitled court, on the

NOTICE OF MOTION

2015, at

Dated: April 24, 2015

a.m./p.m.

By: /s/ Robert J. Cassity
J. Stephen Peck, Esq. (1758)
Bryce K. Kunimoto, Esq. (7781)
Robert J. Cassity, Esq. (9779)
Brian G. Anderson, Esq. (10500)
HOLLAND & HART LLP

9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

David S. Krakoff, Esq.
(Admitted Pro Hac Vice)
Benjamin B. Klubes, Esq.
(Admitted Pro Hac Vice)
Joseph J. Reilly, Esq.
(Admitted Pro Hac Vice)
Adam Miller

(Admitted Pro Hac Vice)
BUCKLEYSANDLER LLP
1250 24th Street NW, Suite 700
Washington DC 20037

Attorneys for Defendant Kazuo Okada,
Defendant/Counterclaimant/Counterdefendant
Aruze USA, Inc., and Defendant/
Counterclaimant Universal Entertainment
Corp.
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF UNIVERSAL
ENTERTAINMENT CORP.’S AND ARUZE USA INC.’S MOTION FOR EXPEDITED
DISCOVERY AND SANCTIONS

Universal Entertainment Corporation (“UEC”) and Aruze USA, Inc. (“Aruze USA”) have

discovered ecgregiously wrongful conduct by Wynn Resorts, Limited (“WRL”), undertaken

covertly in the course of this litigation. Accordingly, UEC and Aruze USA bring this Motion for

Expedited Discovery and Sanctions against WRL to cut-off any continuing wrongful conduct by

WRL; to ascertain expeditiously the full extent of WRL’s past misconduct; and, following the

completion of expedited discovery, for additional sanctions, scheduled and detailed as follows:

Date Event

To be determined (but
no earlier than May 4)°

Oral argument on requests for

e expedited discovery (including the resolution of any
disputes over the particulars of discovery being served
on WRL concurrently with this Motion);

e issuance of a letter rogatory; and

e 1nitial sanctions (including return of UEC’s
documents wrongfully misappropriated by WRL,
precluding the use of such documents in this
proceeding and prohibiting further ex parfe contact
between WRL and current and former UEC and

Aruze USA employees)
Mon., June 22 Completion of expedited discovery
Mon., June 29 Service of WRL’s opposition to the request for further
sanctions
Mon., July 6 Service of UEC’s and Aruze USA’s reply papers
To be determined Oral argument on request for further sanctions

UEC and Aruze USA have allowed time in this proposed schedule to permit them and

WRL, before the initial oral argument, to meet-and-confer regarding the specifics of the discovery

2

As discussed supra, UEC and Aruze USA intend to file an Application for Order

Shortening Time in the coming days after conferring with WRL on the subject.
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requests being served on WRL concurrently with this Motion. During that pre-argument period,
UEC and Aruze USA hope to narrow any differences regarding that discovery. UEC and Aruze
USA must proceed with their Motion now, however, due to the urgency both of cutting off any
continuing wrongful conduct by WRL and of rectifying all WRL violations of UEC’s and Aruze
USA’s rights.

I. INTRODUCTION

After WRL instituted this lawsuit by filing a complaint against UEC and Aruze USA at 2
am on Sunday, February 19, 2012, WRL improperly circumvented the discovery process in
violation of UEC’s and Aruze USA’s rights to a fair proceeding. At least between May 2012 and
October 2013, WRL, acting through its Senior Vice President for Corporate Security, James Stern
(“Stern™), and through a former UEC employee, Toshihiko Kosaka (“Kosaka™), made ex parte
contact with UEC’s Assistant General Manager for Finance and Accounting, Yoshitaka Fujihara
(“Fujihara™), with the explicit purpose of obtaining internal, confidential and proprietary UEC
documents in contravention of the rules governing discovery.” Stern persuaded Fujihara to breach
his confidentiality obligations to UEC by transmitting such documents to him and Kosaka.
Indeed, WRL succeeded in improperly obtaining important information outside of the Nevada
Rules of Civil Procedure and the proper supervision of this Court. Compounding WRL’s blatant
impropriety, WRL has never acknowledged or disclosed the documents or potential witnesses in
discovery under NRCP 16.1, as it was required to do.

What is already known about WRL’s wrong and sanctionable conduct calls for certain
immediate sanctions: the return of all misappropriated UEC documents, and a bar on further ex
parte contact by WRL with employees and former employees of UEC and Aruze USA. The full
extent of WRL’s wrongful conduct, however, is not yet known. But it must be discovered, as
soon as possible, to allow UEC and Aruze USA to begin rectifying, to the extent they can, the

violations of their rights. Accordingly, UEC and Aruze USAseek expedited discovery to identify,

Mr. Stern’s referenced title is based on information and belief.
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among other things:

all of WRL’s direct and indirect contacts with current and former employees of
UEC and Aruze USA,;

e direct and indirect payments to current and former employees of UEC and Aruze
USA;

e direct and indirect efforts to wrongfully obtain internal, confidential and
proprietary UEC documents and information;

e all documents WRL directly or indirectly obtained in a wrongful manner; and

e WRL’s communications in planning and implementing these efforts.

In addition, UEC and Aruze USA seek a letter rogatory to discover information from Kosaka, a
Japanese resident.

UEC and Aruze USA also request that, following completion of expedited discovery, this
Court impose appropriate additional sanctions to punish WRL, to remedy the harm WRL’s
wrongful conduct has caused, and to deter similar misconduct in the future. In particular, UEC
and Aruze USA intend to seck a monetary sanction and dismissal of claims relating to the
illegally procured documents.”
II. FACTUAL BACKGROUND

A. Mr. Fujihara is a Key Manager at UEC

Yoshitaka Fujihara joined UEC in July 2008 as Section Manager in its Finance and
Accounting Department. (Translated Declaration of Yoshitaka Fujihara (“Fujihara Decl.”) § 2,
attached hereto as Exhibit 2. In May 2009, Fujihara was promoted to Assistant General

Manager for the Finance and Accounting Department at UEC. In July 2010, he became the

! UEC and Aruze USA reserve their right to supplement their Motion to seek further

sanctions and/or relief based on facts developed in expedited discovery.

> The exhibits to this Motion are authenticated in the Cassity Decl., attached hereto as Exhibit 1.
The English translation of the Fujihara Declaration, attached hereto as Exhibit 2, is attested to be
a true and correct translation by a certified professional translator whose own Declaration,
describing his qualifications and certifying the accuracy of the translation, is attached to the
translation. The original Fujihara Declaration, attested to in Japanese, is attached hereto as
Exhibit 3.
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senior-most manager in the Department. (Fujihara Decl. §2.) Since July 2010, Fujihara has been
responsible for managing UEC’s Finance and Accounting Department, reporting directly to
UEC’s Chief Financial Officer. (/d. 4 3.) His managerial responsibilities include “overseeing,
supervising and managing the tasks and responsibilities of all the Finance and Accounting
Department employees.” (Id.) He is in charge of preparing and finalizing UEC’s quarterly and
annual financial statements. (/d.) His authorization is required, along with that of other UEC
officers, for UEC to disburse certain funds. (/d.)

When Fujihara joined UEC, he signed a sworn oath agreeing that he would not
intentionally disclose to any third party confidential information of the company or group
companies. (Ex. 1, Fujihara Decl. at Ex. A thereto (“Sworn Oath,” dated July 22, 2008).) He also
agreed that he would not reproduce or duplicate, without permission from the company,
confidential information handled in the performance of his work, and that he would use such

information only for the performance of his work duties. (/d.). In executing the Sworn Oath,
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meet with Stern and provide him with confidential and proprietary UEC documents.

Kosaka worked assiduously to convince Fujihara to provide UEC’s confidential and
proprietary information. Initially, in the spring and summer of 2012, Kosaka misrepresented to
Fujihara that UEC was going to sue him; he argued that the only way to avoid a lawsuit by UEC
was to work with Kosaka to “destroy” Mr. Okada. (Fujihara Decl. § 9.) Next, Kosaka asserted
that Fuyjihara was on a “list” with the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) and the Federal Burcau
of Investigation (“FBI”) and that his only choice was to cooperate against Mr. Okada to avoid
criminal prosecution. (/d. § 10.) During these discussions, Fujihara revealed that Mr. Okada
provided a personal loan for the purchase of land for UEC’s casino project in the Philippines (the
“Philippines Project™), so Kosaka urged Fujihara to obtain these confidential and proprietary
UEC business documents. (/d. 9§ 11.) As a result, between July and November 2012 Fujihara
made copies of the loan agreements in Japanese and English, and a flow chart of the funds. He
provided these confidential and proprictary documents to Kosaka as requested.” (Id. §12.)

C. First Meeting with WRL’s Stern, November 2012

In early November 2012, Kosaka told Fujihara that he wanted him to meet with an
unidentified person at the ANA Intercontinental Hotel in Tokyo. (Fujihara Decl. q§ 14.) Only at
the ensuing meeting did Fujihara learn that this person was James Stern of WRL. (Id. § 15.)
Stern told Fujihara that he wanted information concerning UEC and Mr. Okada and that he
needed Fujihara’s cooperation to “destroy” Mr. Okada. (/d. § 16.) In particular, Stern inquired
about whether Fujihara knew about financial transactions relating to the Philippines Project.
Fujihara agreed to provide the information Stern requested. (Id. 9 16.)

D. Second Meeting with WRL’s Stern, December 2012

After Fujihara’s initial meeting with Stern, Kosaka continued to pressure Fujihara,

requesting that he accompany Kosaka to San Francisco to meet with DOJ and FBI personnel and

! UEC and Aruze USA are not in a posttion to confirm or deny whether these documents or

others subsequently disclosed by Fujihara to Kosaka and his affiliates are official UEC business
records. UEC and Aruze USA are not waiving by this motion any futurc objections to the
authentication or foundation of said documents.
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stating that Fujihara otherwise might be prosecuted. (Fujihara Decl. 4 17.) Kosaka instructed
Fujihara to tell no one, including his family, that he was going to San Francisco. (/d. § 32.) It
appears that Kosaka and Stern were working together to get Fujihara to San Francisco. Fujihara
did not have to make his travel arrangements, nor pay his expenses. (Id. § 21.) Stern provided a
driver in San Francisco; he toured San Francisco with Fujihara and Kosaka; and he paid for their
entertainment, meals, and apparently their hotel rooms. (/d. 9 21-22.) It also appears that WRL
may have paid for Fujihara’s business-class roundtrip airfare directly or indirectly through Stern
or Kosaka. (/d. 4 20.)

Prior to the trip and at the request of Kosaka, Fujithara copied approximately 35
confidential and proprietary UEC business documents regarding the Philippines Project.
(Fuyjthara Decl. q 18.) Kosaka obtained copies of the approximately 35 confidential and
proprietary UEC documents just prior to the trip. (/d.) In San Francisco, Fujihara was
interviewed by a DOJ attorney who later appeared before this Court to request a stay of discovery,
and FBI Special Agent Michael Solari from Stern’s old office in Las Vegas. (/d. § 26). During
the interview, Fujihafa showed UEC’s confidential and proprietary documents regarding the
Philippines Project. (Id. § 27.) Subsequently, Kosaka questioned Fujihara about the contents of
the interview. (Id. §28.) WRL’s Stern was with Fujihara immediately before he was interviewed
by DOJ and immediately afterwards for dinner. (Id. 99 25, 29.) During dinner, Stern again
beseeched Fujihara to cooperate with Mr. Wynn to “get rid of” Mr. Okada. (/d. 9 30.) Shortly
after Fujihara’s disclosure of UEC’s confidential and proprietary documents about the Philippines
Project, Reuters published an article alleging improprieties by UEC on the Philippines Project in
which it noted reviewing UEC’s records.

E. Theft of UEC Documents for WRL in January and February 2013

In January 2013, Kosaka kept up the pressure; he called Fujihara to disclose an alleged
rumor that Mr. Okada had threatened to fire him, although no employment action was ever taken.
(Fujithara Decl. § 38.) Kosaka took this opportunity to request specific information and
documents at UEC about the alleged payment of fravel expenses for a Japanese government

official during a past stay at Wynn Las Vegas. (Id. 4 32.) Fujihara advised Kosaka that he had no

9
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legitimate access to such information, if it even existed. (/d. § 33.) Kosaka nonetheless continued
to pressure him so Fujihara attempted to retrieve this information under false pretenses. (/d.)
Fujihara was able to misappropriate other travel documents, including a request for approval of a
business trip by a manager overseeing the Philippines Project. (/d. 4 34.) Fujihara provided these
documents to Yoshiyuki Shoji, another former UEC employee affiliated with Kosaka, who
indicated that he would translate some of the documents into English to provide to WRL for use
against Mr. Okada. (/d. 4 35.)

In February 2013, Kosaka again contacted Fujihara and said “Wynn is angry because he
had learned that [Fujihara] was hiding information from him.” (/d. § 36.) Kosaka then instructed
Fujihara to obtain any UEC materials he could regarding government officials’ travel.
Accordingly, Fujihara provided Kosaka with additional confidential and proprictary UEC
business documents. (Id. 9 37.)

F. Third Meeting with WRL’s Stern

WRL continued to use Kosaka as its conduit. At Kosaka’s behest, Fujthara traveled in
mid-February 2013 to Los Angeles to meet with Stern for a third time and to meét with the DOJ
and FBI for a second time. (Fujihara Decl. 4 39.) Again, Fujithara did not make any travel
arrangements, nor was he required to pay for any of his expenses. This obligation apparently fell
directly or indirectly to Kosaka and WRL’s Stern. (/d. §40.) And again, Stern met with Fujihara
before and after the DOJ/FBI interview. (Id. 4 43.) Stern took Fujihara to lunch after the
interview and repeatedly insisted that Fujihara provide him with documents related to Japanese
government officials that were the subject of discussion with the DOJ and FBI, which Fujihara
could not access. (/d. 9 44.) After returning to Japan, Kosaka — who had accompanied Stern at all
times in Los Angeles including the lunch — continued the pressure, repeatedly asking Fujihara for
documents related to one of the government officials, as well as Mr. Okada and UEC President
Jun Fujimoto. (/d. 9 46). Kosaka ceased contacting Fujihara after UEC filed a lawsuit against
Kosaka in October 2013. (Id. 9 48.)

G. Chronology of Events

To summarize, the chronology of WRL’s pursuit of UEC Assistant General Manager

10
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Fujihara indirectly through former employee Kosaka, and directly through Stern is telling:

February 19, 2012: WRL initiated this lawsuit by filing a complaint against UEC
and Aruze USA alleging claims involving travel and entertainment expenses for
Philippine government officials during September 2009 and October 2010. See
Complaint, 9 44.

May-November 2012: Former UEC employee Kosaka met with Fujihara
numerous times requesting information and documents to “destroy” Mr. Okada.
Fujihara provided confidential and proprietary UEC documents to Kosaka about
Mr. Okada’s loan regarding the Philippines Project, and the flow of funds.

Early November 2012: WRL’s Senior Vice President for Corporate Security Stern
was introduced to Fujihara by Kosaka at the ANA Hotel in Tokyo. Stern asked for
documents regarding the Philippines Project to “destroy” Mr. Okada.

November 16, 2012: Reuters published an article alleging 1mpr0pnetles by UEC
on the Phlhppmes Project in obtaining tax and licensing concessions. These issues
had not been part of WRL’s initial complaint of February 19, 2012.

December 13-14, 2012: Fujihara traveled with Kosaka to San Francisco. Stern
met them at the airport, and transported them to the hotel. Fujihara did not pay for
his business-class airfare or other travel expenses; he understood that Stern paid
for the hotel because Stern went to the registration desk. Stern met with Fujihara
before he was interviewed by the DOIJ attorney and FBI Special Agent Solari from
the Las Vegas Field Office where Stern previously served. Fujihara showed the
DOJ and FBI proprietary and confidential UEC documents requested by Kosaka.
Beforehand, he provided copies of approximately 35 confidential and proprietary
documents to Kosaka. Fujihara and Kosaka had dinner with Stern who again
implored Fujihara to “cooperate” to “get rid of” Mr. Okada.

December 31, 2012: Reuters published another article regarding allegations of
UEC impropriety on the Philippines Project in obtaining tax and licensing
CONCESSIons.

January 3, 2013: DOJ issued the first grand jury subpoena to Aruze USA seeking
documents regarding the Reuters’ allegations on the Philippines Project.

January-February, 2013: At the urging of Kosaka, Fujihara stole confidential and
proprictary UEC documents regarding expenses for Japanese government officials,
which Fujihara provided to Kosaka.

February 23-24, 2013: At the request of Kosaka, Fujihara traveled with him to Los
Angeles to meet with the DOJ lawyer and FBI Special Agent Solari. WRL’s
driver met Fujihara and Kosaka at the airport and transported them to their hotel.
Again, Fujihara did not pay for business-class airfare or other travel expenses.
Following his interview, Fujihara met Stern and Kosaka at the hotel. Fujihara
observed Stern and Kosaka meet with the DOJ lawyer and FBI Agent Solari in the
hotel lobby. Stern bought Fujithara lunch and dinner, where he pressed him for
more documents regarding Japanese officials. Stern then transported Fujihara back
to the airport the same day.

April 8, 2013: DOI filed a Motion to Intervene in this lawsuit seeking a stay of
discovery.

11
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e April 22, 2013: WRL filed the Second Amended Complaint in which it added the
Reuters’ allegations regarding improper payments on the Philippines Project by
UEC.

e May 2, 2013: The Court granted DOJ’s Motion to Intervene and Stay of
Discovery.

I1I. LEGAL STANDARD

Nevada law recognizes the “inherent power of a court to levy sanctions in response to
abusive litigation practices.” Young v. Ninth Judicial Dist. Court, 107 Nev. 642, 646, 818 P.2d
844, 847 (1991) (citing Roadway Express, Inc. v. Piper, 447 U.S. 752, 764-66 (1980)). In
addition, “courts have inherent equitable powers to dismiss actions or enter default judgments for
... abusive litigation practices.” Young v. Johnny Ribeiro Bldg., Inc., 106 Nev. 88, 92, 787 P.2d
777, 779 (1990) (quoting TeleVideo Systems, Inc. v. Heidenthal, 826 F.2d 915, 916 (9th Cir.
1987). The “district court’s inherent equitablie power to [assess] the appropriate sanctions [is]

k)

based upon the criteria of willfulness, bad faith, and prejudice.” Bahena v. Goodyear Tire &
Rubber Co., 126 Nev. Adv. Op. 57, 245 P.3d 1182, 1188 (Nev. 2010).® Thus, the Court has
authority to fashion a range of sanctions, including, but not limited to, preclusion of evidence,
monetary sanctions, or dismissal of claims.
IV. ARGUMENT
A. WRL’s Conduct Was Wrongful and Prejudicial to the Judicial Process.
WRL’s circumvention of the discovery process in procuring UEC’s confidential and
proprietary business documents was improper and damaged the integrity of the judicial system.
WRL deliberately set out to abuse the judicial process in order to obtain information and
documents outside of discovery beginning shortly after it filed the complaint in this matter. It is
clear from the facts and chronology of events that a senior WRL official misappropriated

confidential and proprictary UEC materials. WRL’s Senior Vice for Corporate Security

manipulated a former UEC employee to act as a conduit, but that attempt to conceal WRL’s

3 Nevada jurisprudence does not follow the federal model of requiring progressive sanctions

against a party for failing to comply with a discovery order. Bahena, 245 P.3d at 1184 (citing
Higgs v. State, 222 P.3d 648, 658 (Nev. 2010)).

12
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wrongdoing will not protect it. Stern used the former employee to obtain documents improperly;
he used the former employee to pressure the UEC employee to steal confidential and proprietary
documents; he met with the UEC employee himself on three different occasions imploring him to
join in “collecting information concerning UEC” and “destroy[ing]” Mr. Okada; he connected the
UEC employee to DOJ attorneys and an FBI agent at his former office, and it appears that he may
have paid for the UEC employee to come to the United States to meet with him and the DOJ and
FBI. The timeline demonstrates that WRL’s improper and concerted strategy to obtain
documents and information from a current UEC employee occurred at times immediately
preceding critical events — DOJ’s decision to initiate a grand jury investigation and the filing of
WRL’s amended complaint.

What we do not know, but are entitled to find out, is the extent of the misconduct and how
far this strategy went within WRL. Indeed, to address the conduct fully, it is imperative to get to
the bottom of WRL’s blatant impropriety through discovery and to subsequently punish and deter

WRL through sanctions.

1. WRL Illegally Procured UEC’s Confidential and Proprietary
Documents Outside the Discovery Process.

A party may not procure its adversary’s internal documents outside the discovery process.
See, e.g., In re Shell Oil Refinery, 143 ER.D. 105, 108 (E.D. La. 1992)° (finding that party’s ex-
parte contact with opposing party’s employee for the purpose of obtaining documents resulted in
receipt of “proprietary documents in [a] manner [that] was inappropriate and contrary to fair
play”), amended on other matters, 144 F.R.D. 73 (E.D. La. 1992); see also Glynn v. Edo Corp.,
2010 WL 3294347 (D. Md. Aug. 20, 2010) (holding that plaintiff’s receipt of defendant’s internal
documents from defendant’s employee “undermines the efficacy of the discovery process and this
Court’s ability to resolve litigation in a fair and orderly manner™); Giardina v. Ruth U. Fertel,

Inc., 2001 WL 1628597 (E.D. La. Dec. 17, 2001) (finding that plaintiff’s rcceipt of opposing

’ Nevada courts have previously looked to federal case law for guidance on the exercise of

the court’s inherent authority. Young, 107 Nev. at 646, 818 P.2d at 847.
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party’s privileged correspondence through ex parte contact with unidentified employee of
defendant was improper); Herrera v. Clipper Group, L.P., 1998 WL 229499, at *2 (S.D.N.Y.
May 6, 1998) (“The discovery process is not meant to be supplemented by the unlawful
conversion of an adversary’s proprietary information.”).

In Shell Oil, for example, the court found that the conduct threcatened the “‘judicial
integrity and the adversary processes” because the offending party “prevented [the opposing
party] from being able to argue against production.” Shell Oil, 143 F.R.D. at 108. The court
concluded that the conduct was wrongful regardless of whether the party’s communication with
its adversary’s employee was permitted under the so-called “no-contact” rule prohibiting an
attorney from communicating with some, though not all, employees of a represented corporate
adversary. Id.; see also Glynn, 2010 WL 3294347, at *5 (“Permitting communication . . . [with
an adversary’s employee] is materially different, however, from permitting [a party] to secrete
documents from” that adversary; the no-contact ruie “says nothing about authorizing the latter
conduct.”). Further, WRL’s possible payment for Fujihara’s expenses, including travel to the
United States, to facilitate the receipt of documents would be “egregious in the extreme.”
Jackson v. Microsoft Corp., 211 F.R.D. 423, 431 (W.D. Wash. 2002) (finding that plaintiff’s
receipt from an unknown source of defendant’s confidential and proprietary information in return

for $1,000 was “egregious in the extreme” and justified dismissal sanction), aff’d 78 F. App’x

588 (9th Cir. 2003).

2. The Impropriety of the Conduct Does Not Depend on the Character of
the Misappropriated Documents.

Regardless of the contents of the documents and the information disclosed by Fujihara,
WRL’s conduct was per se wrongful. Indeed, WRL’s “unauthorized conduct of viewing the
defendant's documents, irrespective of whether or not the documents were privileged, work-
product, or relevant, is the type of scandalous behavior that must not be condoned. It is the act
that necessitates discipline.” Perna v. Electronic Data Sys., Corp., 916 F. Supp. 388, 400 (D.N.J.
1995). The mmpropriety of WRL’s actions docs not depend on the substantive content of the

documents or whether they are relevant to the litigation or otherwise subject to discovery.
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